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May 18, 2020 

This first amendment is a result of questions submitted to the District in response to the RFP for Online Courseware 
and to address the opening of submittals. 

If a representative of your firm is planning to attend the opening of the submitals on May 27, please notify Mark 
VanDero (Mark.VanDero@fwusd.org) so that we can be sure to have appropriate measures in place for physical 
distancing of all attendees.  Because this is an RFP, there will not be much to learn by attending the opening so the 
District will post a list of submissions received on the District website by May 28, 2020 for your convenience. 

1. Does the district anticipate it will award to multiple vendors to ensure the best products are provided and 
to allow the inclusion of a vendor whose solutions serve students in grades 6-12 only? 

The District will award to the fewest number of vendors possible to meet the needs of the District.  A single 
vendor would be preferred. 

2. Tab 3 is missing on the required proposal format listed on page 25 of the RFP. Are we to include 
something for Tab 3? Should this be our response to the RFP’s Scope of Work/Specifications? 

The heading for Tab 3 was omitted.  The following should be in Tab 3 rather than Tab 2:   

Include any additional details about your offering and implementation that will assist the District in evaluating 
your offering. 

3. The Required Forms submission list detailed on page 25 states that we need to submit a signed “Drug-
Free Workplace” form, but a form of this nature is not provided in the forms at the end of the RFP 
document. Will the district be provide us with one? 

Many organizations manintan such a policy.  If your organization does not maintain such a policy, you may 
complete the statement attached to this amendment. 

4. Due to the current COVID-19 pandemic, our office continues to operate with very limited staff, and most 
are working remotely, including our authorized signers. 

a. Would it be acceptable to have the required bid forms signed electronically in lieu of wet signature? 

b. Would the district accept proposals submitted electronically in lieu of printed proposals? 

The District does not have a valid system in place to receive responses electronically while maintaining 
compliance with procurement guidelines.  We cannot accept an electronic submission via the internet.  If your 
firm would like to submit a single hard copy along with electronic files, that would be acceptable.  Signatures 
on the documents are not required to be “wet”. 

Additionally, a signature without notarization will be sufficient for now; however, no award will be made unless 
and until all notarized forms are received by the District. 
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5. Do we need to submit a response for each platform that contains product?  Do we need to submit a 

response on each product on each platform or one submission for a platform and include all product on 
each platform? 

Submit one response for the platform and include all product on the given platform. 

6. Are you looking for all products we have on all platforms (like a catalog format)? 

We are looking for a single platform with the possibility of all courses (or bundles of courses, or programs) 
available on that platform. If vendor has multiple platforms, a separate response shall be provided for each 
platform. 

7. Can we submit an electronic submission during the Stay at Home orders in lieu of multiple print 
submissions?  If not can we have an extension to submit print submissions? 

See question 4. 

8. Will e-signatures be acceptable? 

See question 4. 

9. Are we able to submit without a notary seal? Will you accept just the signed document at this time?  

A signature will be sufficient for now; however, no award will be made unless and until all notarized forms are 
received by the District. 

10. I don’t see a “Performance Evaluation” form to send to our references. 

The survey was omitted by error.  In light of the current situation and potential delays in turn around times, 
simply provide references with valid contact points and the District will contact references as needed. 

11. Will FWSD accept a bid for K-8 or bands of solutions (i.e. K-5, 6-8, 9-12?) 

Yes. 

12. Are the chromebooks and students on a 1:1 ratio? 

Yes. 

13. What is the districts rostering method? 

Students are rostered in PowerSchool. 

14. What languages need to be supported? 

At a minimum, English and Spanish. 

15. What core print math curriculum is used in the district for K-8? 

K-5: Pearson Investigations 3 
6-8: Big Ideas Math 
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16. Due to COVID-19, will the district accept a digital-only submission in lieu of hard copies and mailing (for 

example: by email) 

See question 4. 

17. Are e-signatures satisfactory since so many people are working from various locations throughout the 
country due to COVID-19? 

See question 4. 

18. Is Powerschool  a must criteria,  or just an optional method for mass enrollment? 

Mass enrollment from PowerSchool is preferred. 

19. In RFP 21-02-25: Online Courseware, it mentions that the district is looking for "online courses for 
grades K-12, including core content and electives." Our question is if we could submit a proposal for 
course-specific resources, such as general music or social-emotional learning? 

Only comprehensive platforms that provide courses to meet core curricular requirements in grades K-12 will be 
considered. 

20. Given the impact of Covid-19, will Flowing Wells accept electronic submission of the proposal in lieu of 
printed copies?  

See question 4. 

21. Given the impact of Covid-19, will Flowing Wells accept electronic signatures on forms or are 
handwritten, original ink signatures required?  

See question 4. 

22. The Proposal Format provided on page 25 of the RFP does not include a Tab 3 section. Does this mean 
there is no Tab 3?  

See question 2. 

23. A Compliance Statement form was included with the RFP but is not included on the Proposal Format 
sheet (page 25 of the RFP). Should we include this form as part of Tab 4 with the other required forms, 
or is the Compliance Statement optional at the time of submitting a response? 

The Compliance statement is mandatory and should be submitted in Tab 4. 

24. The Proposal Format on page 25 of the RFP lists a Drug-Free Workplace form in Tab 4 but this form is 
not included in the RFP packet. Should we use our own format or is this optional?  

See question 3. 
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25. Is Flowing Wells considering using courses that would use vendor-provided, state-certified teachers for 

any of the following purposes: to cover courses that are not offered in district, to provide a full-time 
online learning environment or to serve medically compromised students?  

No. 

26. Does the District intend to create an Arizona Online Instruction Program (AOI)? 

The district already has a 7-12 AOI school. The district is pursuing an expansion to include K-5. 

27. Does the District need assistance with the AOI application? 

No. 

28. What is the intended use or application plan with elementary content?  

Elementary content would be utilized in an AOI model, with Flowing Wells teachers serving as teachers of 
record. 

29. The Cost Proposal suggests possible funding issues. How do you plan to fund this programming? 

The cost proposal allows for flexibility to consider different pricing structures available from different vendors 
and to tailor the program to be most cost-effective for the district. Programming will be purchased out of 
recurring district funding sources (not grant funding or one-time-only funding). 

30. Does the District intend to award a single vendor or multiple vendors through this process? 

See question 1. 

31. Is the awarded contract intended as a districtwide implementation or to provide an approved vendor 
option for individual schools on an as-needed basis? The pricing model is unclear. 

The implementation model currently consists of a maximum of 100 concurrent users distributed across Flowing 
Wells High School (credit recovery), Flowing Wells Digital Campus (AOI school) , Sentinel Peak High School 
(credit capture in a blended learning school; not AOI), and Flowing Wells Junior High School (course 
completion in a blended learning program; not AOI). Total enrollment at these four schools is approximately 
2850, although very few students use the courseware overall and even fewer use it concurrently. This model 
will stay intact in future years, but concurrent users are expected to increase in the short term due to COVID-19 
mitigation efforts. Additionally, expansion of the Flowing Wells Digital Campus AOI school to include K-5 is 
anticipated to increase the number of students as well. Enrollment projections are unclear, which is why range 
pricing is requested. 

32. Historically, how many K-12 students and teachers have used online courses within the District? Does the 
District expect this number to increase? 

See question 31. 
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33. Will RFP 21-02-25 contracts be available to other districts as part of any larger access such as S.A.V.E. 

for Arizona or national cooperatives?  Flowing Wells USD is a member of SAVE. 

No.  This solicitation is for just Flowing Wells Unified School District. 

34. In light of the COVID virus, are there any plans for electronic submission of RFP responses?    If not, 
we'll plan to ship the requested paper and flash drive. 

See question 4. 

35. What type of needs is the District looking to meet with the system procured via this RFP (Credit 
recovery, blended learning, extended school closure, etc.)? 

See question 31. 

36. What is the timeline for implementation? 

We anticipate Board approval on June 23, 2020; Purchase order issued July 1, 2020. Training during July 2020. 
Launch with students on August 6, 2020. 

 

End of Amendment #1 
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DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION 

Preference must be given to vendors submitting a certification with their bid/proposal certifying 
they have a drug-free workplace.  The special condition is as follows: 

IDENTICAL TIE PROPOSALS – Preference shall be given to businesses with drug-free workplace programs.  
Whenever two or more bids, which are equal with respect to price, quality, and service for the 
procurement of commodities or contractual services, a bid received from a business that certifies that it 
has implemented a drug-free workplace program shall be given preference in the award process. 
Established procedures for processing tie bids will be followed if none of the tied vendors have a drug-
free workplace program, a business shall: 

1) Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, 
possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the workplace and specify the actions 
that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition.  

2) Inform employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, the business’s policy of 
maintaining a drug-free workplace, any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee 
assistance programs, and the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse 
violations. 

3) Give each employee engaged in providing the commodities or contractual services that are under bid 
a copy of the statement specified in subsection (1). 

4) In the statement specified in subsection (1), notify the employees that, as a condition of working on 
the commodities or contractual services that are under bid, the employee will abide by the terms of 
the statement and will notify the employer of any conviction of, or plea of guilty or nolo contendere 
to, any violation of any controlled substance law of the United States or any state, for a violation 
occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) days after such conviction. 

5) Impose a sanction on, or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse assistance or 
rehabilitation program if such is available in the employee’s community, by any employee who is so 
convicted. 

6) Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of 
this section. 

 

As the person authorized to sign the statement, I certify that this firm complies fully with the above 
requirements. 

 

 

Signature of the person preparing response 

 

 

Company Name 

Must be executed and returned with proposal at time of opening to be considered. 


